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1 Section 7.4 states that responding/winning this RFP Will require 
adherence to all HFA IT Policies (110+ page document). Are these 
policies open to negotiation, or is this the expectations to agree to 
them as written without opportunity for feedback? We work with 
1000+ customers, including 58 of the Fortune 100 and we've 
never agreed to a set of IT policies without our feedback taken into 
account.

These are ITS policies that HFA and its Affiliates largely strive to adhere to.  

HFA is open to specific questions regarding these policies.  Questions must be received in writing by the deadline for 
Questions indicated in the Calendar of Events and Milestones section of the RFP.

1

2 We'd like to understand if failure to deliver on the stated Scope 
points (we do not possess capabilities to deliver on 7.2.1 points 
G,H,I, and
K) and failure to comply with Section 7.4 as we understand it 
would result in meaningful points docked from our scoring

Failure to meet the listed expectations will result in reduced points. 1

3 I am also planning on attending the NYS MWBE conference on 
Nov 18th in Albany, NY. If there are program officers I can meet 
with, kindly let me know

As this RFP is currently active and in a Lobbying Law Restricted Period, all communication regarding the RFP must 
adhere to the procedures described in the RFP. 

1
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4 Page 3 - Is this going to be a standalone system or a piggyback off 
the NYS Account? Do you want any new system to integrate with 
the New York State Contract System (NYSCS)?

The solution described in this RFP is intended to be a standalone system. The platform must be capable of integrating 
with external data sources, including:
- Empire State Development’s MWBE Certification Directory.
- The Office of General Services’ SDVOB Directory.
- HCR’s financial system (SAP), as applicable.
- HCR’s contract management systems or other relevant internal data  sources.

The system must accommodate the following workflows:
- MWBE/SDVOB goal setting.
- Compliance tracking.
- Contract assignment and portfolio monitoring.
- Utilization and payment tracking. 
- Waiver submission and review workflows.
- Reporting and analytics.
- Team workload tracking and dashboarding.

1
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5 7.2.1 -a - What is waiver processing? What are the various steps 
you wish to accommodate within the system?

Vendors seeking a waiver must submit a waiver request along with supporting documentation that demonstrates all 
required good faith efforts. This includes documentation showing:
- All available certified firms within a 50-mile radius were identified.
 - Each firm contacted about the opportunity.
 - Required advertisements and outreach efforts completed.
 - All required supporting materials were submitted through the system.

DECO reviews the waiver request and may request additional information. Waiver requests are then routed through 
the appropriate approval chain, including Empire State Development (ESD), as applicable.
The solution must support:
- Document uploads.
- Automated review checklists.
- Audit trails.
- Notification triggers.
- Tracking of pending, in-review, approved, or denied waivers
- Automated updates to compliance calculations based on final waiver decisions.

1
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6 7.2.1 - f - What type of Project Management abilities do you 
require?

The solution must include comprehensive project management capabilities that enable DECO program leads and 
supervisors to effectively manage workflows, track progress, identify risks, and oversee the full lifecycle of compliance, 
utilization, and contract activities. At a minimum, the system should support:

End-to-end workflow visibility for all active tasks, submissions, reviews, waivers, utilization updates, compliance checks, 
and contract actions.
Milestone and deadline tracking, including alerts, automated reminders, and escalation notifications for overdue or at-risk 
items.
Configurable workflows that allow DECO to adjust steps, approvals, and routing based on contract type, region, funding 
source, or program-specific requirements.
Real-time dashboards for:
Individual analyst workloads
Team-level task distribution
Project- or contract-level progress
Bottlenecks, backlogs, and pending actions

Risk identification tools, such as flags or alerts, for overdue documentation, non-responsiveness, missing utilization data, or 
potential non-compliance.
Audit trails documenting capability. 
Task assignment capabilities enable supervisors to assign work manually while maintaining visibility into staff capacity and 
workload distribution.

The project management features must allow DECO to monitor and manage compliance activities holistically, from 
initiation through completion, with an emphasis on transparency, and timely decision-making.

1
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7 7.2.1 - g - What is waiver processing? What are the various steps 
you wish to accommodate within the system?

See response at # 5 above.                                                                             1

8 7.2.1 - h - How do you want to track team member workloads and 
assign projects? 

The system should support tracking of projects by compliance specialist/analyst and team workloads at multiple 
levels, including:

- Number of contracts assigned per analyst.
- Number of active reviews.
- Time-based workload metrics.
- Volume of waivers and compliance actions.
- Completion timelines.

Assignments may be made manually by supervisors, but the system must provide visibility into staff capacity and 
workload distribution. Dashboards should allow leadership to view:

- Workload distribution across the team.
- Individual staff capacity.
- Performance metrics.
- Contract-level dashboards showing the status of each general contractor’s MWBE/SDVOB performance metrics.

These dashboards will support data-driven decision-making by program leadership.

1
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9 7.2.1 - i  - Do you want to piggyback on the custom workforce 
module we built for NYS in 2021? It is based off DOL SOC codes. 
Or is this a prevailing wage need? 

Yes, DECO’s system should include workforce tracking and labor classification functionality. A module aligned with 
DOL Standard Occupational Classification (SOC) codes would be acceptable, and integration or adaptation of an 
existing NYS workforce module is permitted if compatible with the system’s overall architecture. The system must 
support workforce data capture to inform MWBE/SDVOB compliance, utilization tracking, and reporting.

1

10 7.2.1 - j - Economic Impact Reporting - do you want to be able to 
pull your data to give to a consultant? Or do you want to be able to 
generate your own Economic Impact reports?

DECO requires the system to include built-in economic impact reporting capabilities, including charts, dashboards, 
and other visualizations. The system must also support data exports that can be shared with consultants or other 
internal partners as needed.
While DECO wants data export capability, the selected vendor should have the ability to generate economic impact 
reports within the system that DECO can use for program decision-making, leadership briefings, and board 
presentations. Self-service access to economic impact metrics is also preferred.

1

11 7.2.1 - l - Visual reporting - how many licenses for Power Analytics 
would you need?  

Approximately, 30 licenses. 1

12 7.2.2- c - Can you further define your needs for this? Please refer to the scope of services outlined in the RFP. 1
13 7.2.2- b - custom reports - can you provide a sample so we can 

determine if it is already a standard report in our system or if we 
can create it for you

A representative sample report will be provided to the awarded vendor during implementation. At this stage, vendors 
should rely on the descriptions in the RFP and propose a reporting approach and recommended report formats that 
align with DECO’s stated goals and requirements. The system must support flexible, configurable reporting.

1

14 7.2.3- a - Who do you want to be able to access the library? Staff 
only? Or Staff & Vendors? 

The system must support role-based permissions.
DECO staff will require full access to the library, while external vendors should have limited, permission-based access 
to designated materials such as forms, templates, and guidance documents. Access levels must be configurable.

1

15 7.2.3- c - We need a sample to be able to determine what we can 
do with this ask 

Please refer to the scope of services outlined in the RFP. 1
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16 7.2.4- c - Can you further define what kind of support you are 
looking for? A person/partner or a document repository? 

DECO requires comprehensive support, including technical support, ongoing maintenance, content and configuration 
support, and user-permission administration. The vendor is expected to serve as a long-term partner, not solely a tool 
provider, and to provide timely technical assistance as needed.
Although DECO anticipates using internal job aides to minimize dependency, access to technical and configuration 
support from the vendor remains essential.

1

17 7.2.4- d - Are you looking for a consultant to help assist with this 
ask? Do you wish to engage a consultant for these services in 
support of your use of the software or do you envision this being 
more of technical support and training provided by the system 
provider?

DECO anticipates requiring both technical support and long-term consultant support, including enhancements, 
system optimization, and issue resolution. Regular communication (e.g., weekly check-ins) is expected during 
implementation and ongoing operations to meet program requirements. The vendor’s project team should include 
dedicated technical resources capable of supporting DECO throughout the contract period.

1

18 7.2.1 - Do you wish to use the new system to set contract-specific 
goals for diverse business and/or local worker utilization?

Yes. The system must support the ability to set and track contract-specific MWBE and SDVOB goals and monitor 
utilization at the contract, contractor, and subcontractor levels.

1

19 Given that the vast majority of the services being requested under 
this RFP are software (and not services), is it possible for a prime 
bidder to seek a partial waiver based on them not subcontracting 
out 36% of the work since so much of it is simply the annual 
recurring cost of using the software.

Vendors are encouraged to unbundle the scope where feasible and consider partnering with MWBE and SDVOB firms 
that can support portions of the work.

1

20 Is there a maximum page amount to the appendix items? Appendices should be submitted as one consolidated PDF. There is no strict page limit; however, appendix materials 
should not exceed what is reasonably necessary to demonstrate the vendor’s capabilities and vision in response to 
the RFP.

1
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21 In relation to the appendix items (screen shots, references etc.) 
should those items be attached to the word proposal within the 
same PDF or should the appendix be its own PDF

Appendices should be submitted as one consolidated PDF - separate from the word proposal. 1

22 For requirement on Tab 2 (page 15 of the RFP document) "Tab 2 is 
limited to 10 letter size pages, double spaced", does the entire 
word proposal need to be double spaced, or only tab 2? Also, 
does every line need to be double spaced (making our response 5 
pages of content), or just in-between questions?

The formatting requirements listed in Tab 2: Technical Proposal only apply to the content provided in Tab 2. 

All lines within Tab 2 must be double-spaced throughout the response. Content for Tab 2 should follow the formatting 
listed and be limited to ten (10) letter-size pages.

1

23 In reference to requirement 12.2.3 - 2,3,4 and 5, are we able to 
submit our responses as an appendix item? Section 7.2 has quite 
a few system requirements that we would like to explain 
thoughtfully and individually. With the 10 page max for this section 
it may limit our response.

See response at # 22 above.                                                                             1

24 Are there a certain amount of references you are looking for in 
relation to requirement 12.2.1-2?

Vendors can provide examples of 2-3 engagements within the past 5 years to respond to the requirements in 
12.2.1(2).

1

25 Regarding your requirement for the MBE/WBE participation goal, 
can the subcontractor be certified by NY city or other 
organizations like NMSDC and WBENC? Or should they be 
certified only by NY state?

NYS Certified MWBE. 1

26 Regarding your requirement for MBE 15% and WBE 15% 
participation, can we use one subcontractor who is both MBE and 
WBE to meet this requirement?

Yes. 1
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27 Is there currently an incumbent vendor providing supplier diversity 
management services? If yes, who is the vendor and what is 
working well/not working that we should be aware of?

HFA does not have an incumbent that provides this comprehensive scope of services in this RFP. 1

28 What is the expected data migration volume during 
implementation - number of existing supplier records, historical 
contracts/projects, years of Tier 2 spend data, and current data 
format (Excel, database, other system)?

Data is stored in SharePoint in Excel and document formats. Preliminary ITS analysis identified approximately 94 GB 
(95,670 MB) of data across relevant folders. Final migration scope will be refined with the selected vendor during 
implementation.

2

29 How many internal HFA/Affiliate agency users are expected to use 
the system?

Approximately 100 users.
2

30 How many prime contractors (Tier 1 suppliers) are expected to 
report Tier 2 spend?

We anticipate over 500 Tier 1 Suppliers would be expected to report spend.
2

31 How many active contracts need to be managed simultaneously?
Approximately 1000 contracts.

2

32 How many separate agencies/affiliates require system access, 
and does each require their own branded portal or is role-based 
access within one portal sufficient? (Section 7.2.3.a, Page 11)

This system will be used across the 6 public authorities and 1 executive agency that comprise HCR.  Role-based 
access within one portal is sufficient.

2

33 Can you clarify the "3D maps and analytics" requirement - are 
enhanced 2D heat maps with geographic layering sufficient, or do 
you require true 3D topographical/building visualizations? What 
specific use case is this feature intended to support? (Section 
7.2.2.b, Page 10)

The agency will use this to visualize its MWBE and SDVOB utilization across NYS and workforce data for projects.  It 
will also be used in the agencies' impact reports to its boards, on its website dashboards, and with external partners.  
Therefore, per the Request for Proposal, we request bids based on 3D capabilities.

2
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34 What specific data fields need to be captured for EEO workforce 
reporting, and what makes a project "eligible" for EEO reporting? 
(Section 7.2.1.i, Page 9-10)

 Contract language is what indicates if EEO data must be reported.  An exemption can be applied for by the vendors to 
the EEO reporting but most procurements would not receive an exemption of this requirement. The fields are captured 
in this hyperlinked form (https://hcr.ny.gov/eeo-workforce-utilization-report-proc-5-1) and others approximately 5 
others to be added need to be captured. 

2

35 Are you expecting standalone report for economic and community 
impact reporting or is it from the data collected through the 
projects? (Section 7.2.1.j & k, Page 10)

Data collected through projects and other relevant data i.e. DOL or census data.

2

36 What is your desired go-live date, and are there critical fiscal or 
reporting deadlines driving the timeline? Is phased 
implementation acceptable?

Phased implementation is acceptable. With an anticipated March award, DECO’s priority is to integrate historical data 
early and have core functionality ready to support the next fiscal year’s quarterly reporting cycle. Key reporting dates 
are July 15, October 15, January 15, and April 15. The system must support entry of the July 15 reporting period. Final 
timeline will be established collaboratively with the selected vendor.

2

37 The cost proposal estimates 1,000 hours annually for 
training/support and 100 users - are these based on historical 
usage or projections? What is the anticipated annual growth rate? 
(Section 12.3, Page 19-20)

The estimate of 1,000 annual training/support hours is based on historical experience and anticipated needs for 
onboarding, technical assistance, and ongoing support. As system usage expands, needs may evolve. Vendors should 
propose their best assessment of required support based on the RFP scope and projected user base.

2

38 What is the expected breakdown between training hours vs. 
ongoing support hours within the estimated 1,000 annual hours? 
(Section 12.3, Page 19)

Proposer needs to make their best assessment of need and offer based on scope in RFP.
2

39 How many in-person training sessions are anticipated, where 
would they be conducted, and how many attendees per session? 
(Section 7.2.4.a, Page 11)

Trainings are anticipated to be virtual, not in-person.  Number of attendees per session should be addressed by 
proposer in proposal.

2

Page 10 of 12

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fhcr.ny.gov%2Feeo-workforce-utilization-report-proc-5-1&data=05%7C02%7CChivonne.Lloyd%40hcr.ny.gov%7C72e77c95d7f7459fb55808de32ad2514%7Cf46cb8ea79004d108ceb80e8c1c81ee7%7C0%7C0%7C639003916407346381%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=qJ%2Be8B61fLv%2FeXp0CSzEhmlMxiNlRIQFwrmPOk%2Bj1G4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fhcr.ny.gov%2Feeo-workforce-utilization-report-proc-5-1&data=05%7C02%7CChivonne.Lloyd%40hcr.ny.gov%7C72e77c95d7f7459fb55808de32ad2514%7Cf46cb8ea79004d108ceb80e8c1c81ee7%7C0%7C0%7C639003916407346381%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=qJ%2Be8B61fLv%2FeXp0CSzEhmlMxiNlRIQFwrmPOk%2Bj1G4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fhcr.ny.gov%2Feeo-workforce-utilization-report-proc-5-1&data=05%7C02%7CChivonne.Lloyd%40hcr.ny.gov%7C72e77c95d7f7459fb55808de32ad2514%7Cf46cb8ea79004d108ceb80e8c1c81ee7%7C0%7C0%7C639003916407346381%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=qJ%2Be8B61fLv%2FeXp0CSzEhmlMxiNlRIQFwrmPOk%2Bj1G4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fhcr.ny.gov%2Feeo-workforce-utilization-report-proc-5-1&data=05%7C02%7CChivonne.Lloyd%40hcr.ny.gov%7C72e77c95d7f7459fb55808de32ad2514%7Cf46cb8ea79004d108ceb80e8c1c81ee7%7C0%7C0%7C639003916407346381%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=qJ%2Be8B61fLv%2FeXp0CSzEhmlMxiNlRIQFwrmPOk%2Bj1G4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fhcr.ny.gov%2Feeo-workforce-utilization-report-proc-5-1&data=05%7C02%7CChivonne.Lloyd%40hcr.ny.gov%7C72e77c95d7f7459fb55808de32ad2514%7Cf46cb8ea79004d108ceb80e8c1c81ee7%7C0%7C0%7C639003916407346381%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=qJ%2Be8B61fLv%2FeXp0CSzEhmlMxiNlRIQFwrmPOk%2Bj1G4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fhcr.ny.gov%2Feeo-workforce-utilization-report-proc-5-1&data=05%7C02%7CChivonne.Lloyd%40hcr.ny.gov%7C72e77c95d7f7459fb55808de32ad2514%7Cf46cb8ea79004d108ceb80e8c1c81ee7%7C0%7C0%7C639003916407346381%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=qJ%2Be8B61fLv%2FeXp0CSzEhmlMxiNlRIQFwrmPOk%2Bj1G4%3D&reserved=0


Number Questions Answers
Posted 
Round

NEW YORK STATE HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY

Supplier Diversity, Compliance, and Portfolio Management Solution issued 10/22/2025

Questions and Answers - updated as of 12/05/2025.

40 Do different agencies/affiliates have different workflows or 
compliance requirements that would require separate 
configurations?

Not at this time.
2

41
Is there a requirement for MWBE participation on this RFP?

Yes, see Section 3 of the RFP. 2

42
Is there a requirement for SDVOB participation on this RFP?

Yes, see Section 3 of the RFP. 2

43 What system does NYS HFA currently have for managing its 
MWBE and SDVOB participation.

HFA is currently managing its MWBE/SDVOB utilization in-house.
2

44 Is there a link to the recorded Pre-Bid Conference such that it may 
be reviewed?

The recording of the pre-conference is for internal Agency use only.
2

45 Does NYS HCR prefer a unified platform to provide all 
capabilities?

Yes.
2

46 Does NYS HCR perform goal setting at the contract level for 
construction, goods & services and professional services? Yes.

2

47 How many tiers of subcontractor participation does NYS HCR 
desire to track and report?

All tiers of subcontracting necessary for MWBE & SDVOB reporting. 
2

48 What format will NYS HCR provide the data (vendor, contract, 
payment) that will need to be uploaded into the new system? csv or any other format that can be derived from Excel.

2

49 Will NYS HCR assign an IT Project Manager for the 
Implementation?

An IT Project Manager has not yet been designated. If IT support is needed during implementation, HCR will coordinate 
the appropriate internal resources.

2
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50 Will NYS HCR assign a Business Project Manager for the 
Implementation?

Yes.  There would be one central person for managing this project.
2

51 For the initial Agency, please provide the following quantities for 
cost proposal

•No. of vendors?
•No. of contracts?
•No. of Projects or Master agreements?
•Primes and subcontractors reporting payments and workforce 
reports.

Procurement Portfolio:
   • No. of vendors - 200.
   • No. of contracts - 250.
Development/Construction portfolio:
   • No. of Projects or Master agreements - 300 funded projects.
   • Primes and subcontractors reporting payments and workforce reports - 420 vendors, 750 subcontractors.

2

52 Does NYS HCR have a requirement to certify Section 3 
businesses?

Section 3 is not a part of the scope of this solicitation.
2

53 What is NYS HCR requirement for submission of certified payroll?
Certified payrolls are not required for this project.

2

54 How many staff will NYS HCR like to train for the new system?
See the response for Question #29 above.

2
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